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Moscone Garage Development RFP 
Questions and Answers Document (April 20, 2018) 

 
Employment, Workforce Training, and Contract Compliance: 
 

1. How do Proposers meet the 20% Local Business Enterprise (LBE) requirement given how 
early we are in the development process and given that we only have to include several 
entities—architect, property manager, affordable housing developer, services provider—
in the RFP submittal? 
Answer: Per Section 4.3, subsection 7.G and Section 5.19 of the RFP, Proposers must 
submit an LBE Participation Plan and CMD Form 2A with their responses. These materials 
ask for any known commitments to LBE firms at the time of submission, a plan for 
achieving the 20% LBE participation goal, and a narrative description of how the Proposer 
will enhance LBE participation throughout the project. For additional clarity, Proposers are 
strongly encouraged to contact the SFMTA Contract Compliance Office (CCO) for review of 
the required LBE program documentation prior to submitting a proposal. The CCO contact 
for this RFP is Kimberly Wilson, (415) 701-4428 or kimberly.wilson@sfmta.com. 
 

2. Please confirm that LBE firms required to meet the LBE participation goals may be added 
to the development team after selection of the development team by the SFMTA.  
Answer: Confirmed. See Section 4.3, subsection 7.G and Section 5.19 of the RFP for 
additional information. 
 

3. It’s not entirely clear what needs to be included in the RFP submittal regarding various 
compliance forms and LBE certification. Please provide greater clarity.  
Answer: Proposers must submit an LBE Participation Plan and CMD Form 2A with their 
submittals. These requirements have been added to the Submission Requirements per the 
RFP addendum issued on April 20. See Section 4.3, subsection 7.G and Section 5.19 of the 
RFP for additional information. 
 

4. What, if any, Contract Monitoring Division (CMD) forms/documentation need to be 
submitted as part of the proposal (none are listed on the submission checklist)?  
Answer: Proposers must submit an LBE Participation Plan and CMD Form 2A with their 
submittals. These requirements have been added to the Submission Requirements per the 
RFP addendum issued on April 20. See Section 4.3, subsection 7.G and Section 5.19 of the 
RFP for additional information. 
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5. How would LBE compliance be tracked?  

Answer: During the predevelopment phases and following SFMTA acceptance of each 
milestone completion (yet no longer than every six months), the Developer is to provide a 
CMD Attachment 7, FORM 9: CMD Payment Affidavit (or the information on Form 9) to 
SFMTA Contract Compliance with a copy to the SFMTA Project Manager. During the 
construction phase, the Developer is to provide CMD Attachment 7, FORM 9: CMD 
Payment Affidavit following SFMTA acceptance of each milestone completion (yet no 
longer than every three months). 
 

6. It would be helpful if the sign-in sheet for the preproposal conference could include 
DBE/LBE status next to the name of each individual/entity. Can this information be 
distributed to all those who attended the preproposal conference?  
Answer: A copy of the sign-in sheet with the certification status of each firm has been 
posted to the OCA website. 
http://mission.sfgov.org/OCABidPublication/BidDetail.aspx?K=12855 
 

7. The presentation about LBE compliance at the preproposal conference mentioned that 
there is a rating bonus for LBEs which assume the role of a prime in their submittal. What 
about joint ventures? Could a team realize this rating bonus if an LBE were a member of 
a joint venture that served as the prime? Would there be a minimum ownership 
percentage for the LBE within the joint venture to qualify for this rating bonus? 
Answer: There is no rating bonus for prime contractor-level LBE participation allowed on 
this RFP.   
  

8. Section 5.19 (Equal Opportunity (sub)Contracting Requirements) states: “The project’s 
equal opportunity subcontracting requirements must remain for the term of the Lease 
Agreement(s) and will be recorded in the LDDA.” Does the City intend for the 20% LBE 
subcontracting “goal” to remain in force for all project-related contracts throughout the 
term of the lease?  
Answer: The 20% LBE subcontracting goal applies to all development-related, non-
construction services. The LBE subcontracting goal for project operations throughout the 
term of the lease will be determined at a later date and will be recorded in the LDDA. See 
Section 4.3, subsection 7.G and Section 5.19 of the RFP.  
 

9. If an offsite housing alternative is proposed, will SFMTA Contract Compliance still 
facilitate compliance with contracting and workforce requirements for the Housing 
Component?  
Answer:  The compliance provisions that exist on the project that a Developer will use to 
obtain offsite housing credit will govern the contracting and workforce requirements for 

http://mission.sfgov.org/OCABidPublication/BidDetail.aspx?K=12855
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the offsite housing alternative. Moreover, the governing agencies that facilitate 
compliance for the offsite housing alternative will facilitate compliance for their workforce 
and contracting requirements. 
 

Affordable Housing Component: 
 

10. Can the land value of offsite affordable housing be counted towards the pro forma?  
Answer: If a proposer elects the offsite affordable housing option, the cost of acquiring the 
offsite parcel (either through purchase or long term lease) should be included in the 
financing plan (Section 4.3, subsection 6.B). Note that proposals that elect the offsite 
option are not obligated to demonstrate site control of an offsite parcel at this stage of the 
project. However, the estimated cost of acquiring the parcel should be reasonable and 
consistent with the fair market value of parcels within a one mile radius of the Moscone 
Garage Site.  

 
11. We presume that the offsite location can be owned by the Developer as long as it is 

subject to a 65-year (with 34-year extension option) ground lease restricting its use for 
affordable housing.  Is that correct?  
Answer: The offsite location may be owned by the Developer or other member of the 
development team, provided that the offsite property will be subject to a recorded Notice 
of Special Restriction, Declaration of Restrictions, and/or Regulatory Agreement (none of 
which may be subordinated) requiring that the housing units remain affordable for the 
term of the ground lease of the Moscone Center Garage Site (Section 3.6, subsection 
Offsite Alternative d.). Alternatively, the offsite property may be transferred to the City, 
and the City will ground lease the property back to the developer.  
 

12. Alternatively, we presume that the cost of the offsite location could be included as a 
development cost in the affordable housing sources and uses.  In that case, we assume 
that the City (presumably MOHCD) would assume ownership.  Is that also possible? Does 
the City have a preference for one or the other of those offsite land ownership 
scenarios?  
Answer: If a proposer elects the offsite affordable housing option, the cost of acquiring the 
offsite parcel (either through purchase or long term lease) should be included in the 
financing plan (Section 4.3, subsection 6.B). See Questions 10 and 11 above.  

 
13. Can Proposers meet with the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development 

(MOHCD) during the RFP period to discuss the suitability of a possible offsite location 
before proposals are due? 
Answer: No. While MOHCD has an open-door policy with prospective developers who 
would like to discuss the suitability of possible locations for any affordable housing 
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development in San Francisco, MOHCD will not discuss potential offsite locations related to 
the Moscone Garage RFP during the RFP period.  
 
Designating specific offsite locations for the Housing Component will have no effect on the 
determination of completeness and the evaluation of a Proposer’s submittal in response to 
this RFP. 
 

14. If we do not have site control of an offsite property by the submittal deadline, do we 
need to submit two housing proposals (one on-site, one offsite)? Or is presentation of 
just the offsite scenario sufficient?  
Answer: Site control is not a requirement at this stage of the development process. A 
proposer is only required to submit one housing proposal. Please see responses to 
questions above regarding how to budget for the development of any offsite affordable 
housing proposed. Note that designating a specific site for the offsite housing option is not 
a requirement of the Moscone Garage RFP. Section 4.3, subsection 4.A.ii of the RFP states:  
 

“Identify whether the affordable housing component will be constructed on-site or 
offsite…If the offsite option is selected, the development team must demonstrate site 
control of the proposed location upon execution of the LDDA or in accordance with the 
specific terms and schedule to be outlined in the LDDA (emphasis added). If the 
development team is unable to demonstrate site control of the offsite location per the 
terms and schedule of the LDDA, the Housing Component must be built at the 
Moscone Center Garage Site.”  

  
 

15. The RFP suggests that the site for an offsite project “…must demonstrate site control of 
the proposed location upon execution of the LDDA.”  Does that mean we can propose an 
offsite project without a site currently in hand, or do we need to prove that we have a 
site which can be under site control at the time of the LDDA?  
Answer: An offsite project may be proposed without identifying a specific site. See 
Question 14. If a proposer chooses the offsite option, their proposal must still include a 
description of the development concept per Section 4.3, subsection 4.A.ii, which states: 
 

“Describe the Housing Component development concept and program, including 
number of units, the unit mix of the population to be served by AMI level, residential 
amenities, location and treatment of the entrance to the Housing Component, and 
location and treatment of residential open space(s). Identify whether the affordable 
housing component will be constructed on-site or offsite. If offsite, provide additional 
detail about the Housing Component development concept, building type, and 
amenities (emphasis added).” 

 



 

 

5 

16. Would there be additional restrictions for an offsite affordable housing project, such as 
lease terms?  
Answer: See Question 11.  
 

17. Will MOHCD contribute to an offsite affordable housing development’s predevelopment 
costs? 
Answer: The specific terms and disbursement schedule governing any MOHCD financing 
for the Housing Component would be negotiated at a future date.  
 

18. Typically, affordable housing projects that receive MOHCD funding receive 
predevelopment funding from MOHCD.  Are we to assume that this housing project will 
NOT receive predevelopment funding from MOHCD?  Is the predevelopment funding 
assumption the same for offsite projects as on-site projects?  
Answer: See Question 17. 
 

19. Can an offsite affordable proposal be combined with another project or alternatively be 
split between two or more separate sites?  
Answer: Per Section 3.6 of the RFP, “The offsite alternative may be provided…within a 
larger development project, provided that the units are net additions to any affordable 
housing already required or proposed within that project.” The offsite option may be 
accommodated by two or more separate sites, provided a) that the units are net additions 
to affordable housing already required or proposed on each site and b) that both sites are 
within a one mile radius of the Moscone Garage Site.  
 

20. For an offsite proposal, will the TDM requirements apply to the housing portion?  
Answer: Yes.  
 

21. For an offsite proposal, we assume the housing outreach plan and marketing plan are 
effectively stand alone.  And that most of the City communication is with MOHCD.  Does 
that seem correct?  
Answer: Whether the on-site or offsite housing option is pursued, development teams will 
be expected to complete an Affirmative Marketing Plan for the housing component and a 
community and stakeholder engagement process for the entire project (on-site and offsite 
components). Regarding communications with City agencies, please see Section 3.1 of the 
RFP. MOHCD will be the primary point of contact for matters pertaining to the Housing 
Component, but all of the agencies discussed in Section 3.1 will be involved in the project.  
 

22. What is the required duration of the affordable units?  
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Answer: The affordable housing units must remain affordable for the term of the ground 
lease of the Moscone Center Garage site for either onsite or offsite units (refer to Section 
3.6 of the RFP). 
 

23. If we end up with more than the required number of total units, do the percentages 
apply to the new number? Or are we free to target the additional units as we please? (Or 
do you think the answer is obviously "yes, the percentages apply to the new 
total number")?  
Answer: The percentage of housing units that must fall within each income category as 
outlined in Section 3.6 would only apply to the minimum required number of units (100 for 
the on-site option and 133 for the offsite option). Proposals may allocate additional units 
to any income category, provided that all units be affordable to households at 120% AMI 
and below.  
 

24. For the moderate income units in the Housing Component, is there a requirement (or 
preference) that any of the units be made available for households above 80% of Area 
Median Income?  
Answer: Per Section 3.6 of the RFP, “20% of the housing units shall be restricted to 
moderate-income qualifying residents at no higher than 120% of AMI.”  
 

25. The RFP indicates that for the Housing Component “lower subsidy per unit requests will 
be scored more favorably than higher subsidy per unit requests.” Per unit subsidy 
requests are a function of projected project costs and projected funding sources. This 
creates a rationale for teams to project lower costs than can actually be achieved or to 
presume funding sources that cannot realistically be achieved. Will the panel balance the 
per unit subsidy request against the reality of costs/funding sources?  
Answer: Yes, the Evaluation Panel will review both the requested subsidy per housing unit 
as well as the feasibility and reasonableness of the development budget and overall 
financing plan for the Housing Component. 
  

26. How will the panel treat Housing Component proposals that reflect funding sources, like 
the State bond, that currently don’t exist or for which guidelines don’t yet exist?  
Answer: Funding sources that do not yet exist should not be included, though may be 
identified for reference as potential sources. Please see Section 4.3, subsection 6.B.iii of 
the RFP which states, “For the purposes of this RFP, and based on currently available 
funding sources, developers should provide a ‘baseline’ pro forma that includes only 
(emphasis added) 4% low income housing tax credits, tax-exempt bonds, Federal Home 
Loan Bank Affordable Housing Program funds, and the requested MOHCD subsidy per unit. 
Private bank debt may be included, if appropriate.” Any funding sources anticipated 
beyond those in the baseline pro forma must be identified by Proposers as a potential 
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funding source but will not be a component of the baseline pro forma. The baseline pro 
forma will be the basis for evaluating the Housing Component’s financial proposal.   
 

27. Modular housing is politically challenging and has not been successfully proposed for 
affordable housing in San Francisco.  How will the panel treat housing proposals that 
presume modular housing?  Will claimed cost savings be treated as valid?  
Answer: The RFP does not prescribe a particular construction method, but the entire 
project, including the Housing Component, is expected to conform to all applicable building 
codes and the Design Parameters enumerated in Section 2.5 of the RFP. Regarding 
projected cost savings associated with modular construction or any other proposed cost 
savings technique, proposers must provide justification/validation for the estimated cost 
savings. The financing plan for the project, including the Housing Component, will also be 
evaluated for the reasonableness and feasibility of its assumptions.  
 

28. Please confirm that the legal parcel for the on-site housing component could be a 
“condominium air rights” parcel rather than a separate portion of the site footprint area?  
Answer: Confirmed. See Section 2.2 of the RFP which states, “SFMTA will retain ownership 
of the land and will enter into a long-term ground lease, or two ground leases or air rights 
leases…to enable development of the project.” The specific terms of any ground lease(s) or 
air rights lease(s) would be negotiated and incorporated into the LDDA and ultimately the 
lease agreement(s). 
 

29. Does the SFMTA have a preferred list of qualified affordable housing developers? The 
RFP simply states that the developer must partner with a qualified partner. Likewise, is 
there a list of approved/preferred residential services providers?  
Answer: No. The SFMTA does not have a preferred list of affordable housing developers or 
residential services providers. Section 4.3, subsection 3 of the RFP describes the 
information that must be submitted to document the experience and expertise of the 
members of the development team, including the affordable housing development entity 
and services provider. 
 

Hotel Component: 
 

30. What is the definition of a convention hotel for the purposes of this RFP? 
Answer: There is not a standard definition of a convention hotel, but per Section 2.3 
subsection a. of the RFP, the Hotel Component is expected to have 650 rooms; it is 
expected to be a full service hotel with a restaurant and other hotel amenities; and it is 
expected to have meeting space. RFP responses should identify the features, amenities, 
programming, and quantity of meeting space that would be appropriate for a convention-
serving hotel in a large market like San Francisco. 
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31. Does the SFMTA have any specific expectations on meeting space and other amenities?  

Answer: See Question 30. 
 

32. Does the SFMTA have any specific expectations on room size?  
Answer: No, but the room dimensions should be reasonable for a large hotel in a major 
urban market serving tourists and convention-goers. 
 

33. Is 650 rooms a minimum requirement and is there a maximum number of hotel rooms?  
Answer: Per Section 1.1 and Section 2.3, subsection a. of the RFP, the hotel is expected to 
have 650 rooms. Proposals may include more than 650 rooms, provided that the proposal 
meets all other Development Program Requirements and the Design Parameters 
enumerated in Sections 2.3 and 2.5 of the RFP, respectively. 
 

34. What is SF Travel’s room block rate? 
Answer: Room block rates are not specified by SF Travel. SF Travel is a liaison between 
hotels and convention planners who are seeking room block reservations. The hotel 
operator will partner with SF Travel toward successfully securing meetings and conventions 
in San Francisco, which includes offering availability whenever possible. It is expected that 
room rates for block reservations will be in line with hotel competitors. 
 

Planning & Design: 
 

35. Can you share the preliminary project massing that Planning completed and the building 
program that was evaluated? Did Planning do a calculation of aggregate square footage?  
Answer: SF Planning modeled building scenarios ranging from 620,000 to 650,000 gross 
square feet that included the hotel and affordable housing uses. The parking component 
was not included in the building scenarios. The scenarios were preliminary in nature and 
were performed to confirm the reasonableness of the RFP program and design 
parameters.  For this reason, they were not included in the RFP and will not be circulated.  

 
36. What is a reasonable Floor Area Ratio (FAR) to incorporate into the design of the Project? 

Answer: There is no specific minimum or maximum FAR that is contemplated. The selected 
development team will work closely with SF Planning throughout the design development 
phase to craft a successful project with appropriate density for the proposed uses. Please 
refer to Section 2.5, subsection b of the RFP, which states:  
 

“The Planning Department’s initial massing study suggests that it is unlikely the 
required hotel development program can be met within this FAR limit, and that it may 
be necessary to consider modifications to the FAR limits. Proposers are encouraged to 
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consider the FAR of surrounding uses to determine whether any modification to 
existing FAR limits should be proposed to meet the required development program. 
The selected Proposal will achieve the required program while conforming to existing 
general neighborhood development patterns.”  

 
Please also note the following language in Section 2.5, subsection b:  
 

“Note that in C-3 districts, the gross square footage of the Housing Component may be 
exempted from the calculation of project FAR, subject to issuance of a Conditional Use 
Permit from the Planning Commission.” 

 
It is important to emphasize that the building scenarios that SF Planning considered (as 
described in Question 35, above) included the affordable housing component in the gross 
square footage totals, though it is expected that this use will be exempt from the gross 
floor area calculation for FAR. Conversely, the SF Planning scenarios did not include the 
public parking component, but this use is principally permitted in C-3-S districts and 
therefore would be included in the gross floor area calculation of FAR. 
 
Proposers should also incorporate Section 2.5, subsection a. into the design of their 
proposal, which states:  
 

“Proposals should comply with the maximum 320 foot height limit and should seek to 
minimize building bulk as much as possible, while delivering the required development 
program. Consideration should be given to sculpting building massing to minimize 
potential shadow impacts…while delivering a building that is elegant on the skyline and 
creates a comfortable urban environment at the pedestrian scale.” 
 

For further information regarding Height and Bulk limitations, please refer to the San 
Francisco Planning Code, Section 270. Bulk Limits: Measurement. After considering the 
height and bulk limitations imposed by the Zoning Code, please refer to the recently 
approved San Francisco Urban Design Guidelines that will be used by San Francisco 
departments to guide the design review process. The Urban Design Guidelines can be 
found on the San Francisco Planning website at this address: http://sf-planning.org/urban-
design-guidelines. 
 

37. Would parking be exempt from the calculation of FAR?  
Answer: No, public parking is a principally permitted use in C-3-S districts and therefore is 
included in the gross floor area calculation of FAR. 
 

38. Would cultural/non-profit space in non-ground floor areas be exempted from the 
calculation of FAR?  

http://sf-planning.org/urban-design-guidelines
http://sf-planning.org/urban-design-guidelines
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Answer: Please refer to the San Francisco Planning Code, Section 102, for the definition of 
Floor Area. In general, the San Francisco Planning Code exempts floor area permanently 
devoted to cultural, educational, recreational, religious, or social service facilities available 
to the general public at no cost or at a fee covering operating expenses, provided that the 
facilities are: (A) Owned and operated by a nonprofit corporation or institution; or (B) Are 
made available rent free for occupancy only by nonprofit corporations or institutions for 
such functions.  
 
Proposed project uses will be reviewed by SF Planning during the design development 
phase for determination of FAR applicability. 
 

39. The FAR for the site under the current zoning is 5:1, which can be increased to 7.5:1 with 
the use of transferable development rights.  At 7.5 FAR, the current zoning would 
support approximately 300,000 sf of development, roughly half of what is outlined as the 
goal for the Site.  How will the SFMTA help adjust the zoning to ensure that more FAR 
can be built on the site?  
Answer: See Question 36. The SFMTA will work with the selected Developer and Planning 
to support the Developer’s requests for reasonably necessary amendments to the Planning 
Code, but per Section 3.3 of the RFP, the Developer shall be responsible for “Planning Code 
amendments and any related documents that would allow the project to be built as 
intended.” Per Section 5.15, “The SFMTA issues this RFP…not as a regulatory agency of the 
City. The SFMTA’s status as an agency of the City will in no way limit the obligation of the 
selected Proposer to obtain approvals from City departments, boards or commissions with 
jurisdiction over the project.”    
 

40. Has the SFMTA done a preliminary capacity study based on the FAR? The hotel key count 
appears to exceed the FAR. 
Answer: See Questions 35-39. 
 

41. Will Developer be allowed to pay an “in lieu fee” for the offsite development of 
Privately-Owned Public Open Space (POPOS)?  
Answer: No, the Planning Code requires that POPOS be provided on the development site. 
Please refer to Section 138 of the Planning Code for requirements. 
 

42. Alternatively, may on-site POPOS be developed as enclosed and covered space?  
Answer: POPOS, in some instances, may be provided as an interior space as allowed by 
Planning Code Section 138(d). The type, size, location, physical access, seating and table 
requirements, landscaping, availability of commercial services, sunlight and wind 
conditions, and hours of public access shall be reviewed and approved in accordance with 



 

 

11 

the provisions of Section 309 (Downtown Project Authorization), and shall generally 
conform to the "Guidelines for Open Space" within the Downtown Area Plan. 
 

43. Does the SFMTA have a particular vision for the ground level activation of the new 
development?  
Answer: The vision for the ground level activation of the new development is described in 
Section 2.5, subsection c of the RFP. For further consideration, please refer to the recently 
approved San Francisco Urban Design Guidelines: http://sf-planning.org/urban-design-
guidelines. 
 

44. What is the expected (or typical) entitlement and zoning approval process? How long 
does this generally take in this sub-market? And are there are additional specific fees 
that accompany each process?  
Answer: Section 4.3, subsection 7.C of the RFP states: “For the purposes of this RFP and 
this project schedule, proposers should assume an 18-month long environmental review 
and entitlement period after the submittal of a stable project description. The actual 
timeline for the project’s entitlements and environmental review may differ, but the 
proposed project schedules should assume at least an 18-month period to obtain project 
approvals.”  
 
The fees associated with each phase of the environmental review and entitlement process 
are provided by SF Planning at the following 
link: http://forms.sfplanning.org/Fee_Schedule.pdf.  
 

45. What specific impact fees apply to the development? Is there a specific document that 
outlines how these impact fees translate / multiply so that we can include these fees in 
our development budget?  
Answer: The following web address is for the San Francisco Citywide Development Impact 
Fee Register, which provides the most recent information on impact fees, their applicability 
citywide or to particular sub-areas, and the methodology for calculating 
fees: http://forms.sfplanning.org/Impact_Fee_Schedule_2018.pdf.  
 

46. What is the expected (or typical) environmental review process? How long does this 
generally take in this sub-market?  
Answer: See Question 44. 
 

  

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=california(planning)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'309'%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_309
http://sf-planning.org/urban-design-guidelines
http://sf-planning.org/urban-design-guidelines
http://forms.sfplanning.org/Fee_Schedule.pdf
http://forms.sfplanning.org/Impact_Fee_Schedule_2018.pdf
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Parking and Loading: 
 

47. Can a proposal be submitted without a City parking option and/or be withdrawn from 
consideration if the City elects to have parking?  
Answer: Per Section 4.3, subsection 4 of the RFP, “Each proposer shall submit two 
development proposals—one that includes a public parking garage of 200-300 spaces and 
another that includes no parking garage.” Each proposer is expected to submit proposals 
with and without the public parking garage.  
 

48. Is the City willing to issue tax-exempt bonds for the construction of the Parking Garage?  
Answer: No, tax-exempt bonds will not be available for this project.  
 

49. Would a limited valet parking area intended for hotel guests be allowed under the RFP? 
If so, what would be the maximum number of valet spaces allowed?  
Answer: Yes, space for valet, vehicle, and passenger loading would be allowed, subject to 
the requirements of the Planning Code. The RFP does not anticipate a specific maximum 
number of valet spaces that would be allowed, though proposed designs must be mindful 
of the Design Parameters enumerated in Section 2.5 of the RFP, which states:  “Any 
vehicular loading or passenger pickup and drop-off areas must be designed to minimize 
disruption to the movement of pedestrians, buses, and bicycles along 3rd Street, and must 
not interfere with the goal of creating a vibrant, pedestrian-oriented ground floor.” 
 

50. What will the lease terms be for use of the parking spaces?  
Answer: Lease terms for the hotel use of parking spaces within the garage would be 
negotiated by the developer/ hotel operator and the SFMTA at a future date. Per Section 
2.3, subsection a. of the RFP, “The hotel operator may negotiate a use agreement with the 
SFMTA public parking garage, if the City elects to include a Garage Component.”  
 

51. If a parking garage is built, will preferential access/reserved parking for hotel be 
permitted?  
Answer: See Question 50. 
 

52. If not, and if no garage is built, is there any leeway to provide some limited number of 
parking spaces within the hotel project for hotel use?  (For example, for hotel courtesy 
shuttles.)  
Answer: See Question 49. The developer may propose various transportation solutions to 
support hotel operations as part of the Transportation Demand Management (TDM) 
approach described in Section 2.5, subsection e of the RFP.  
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Project and Lease Terms: 
 

53. Would the 34-year lease extension option be by mutual consent of Developer and SFMTA 
or only by SFMTA at its sole discretion?  
Answer: Per Section 4.3, subsection 6.A.i of the RFP, “Any proposed terms for the 34 year 
Ground Lease extension should be included in the Ground Rent Offer.” Ground Lease 
extension terms will be subject to future negotiations between the parties. 
 

54. Does SFMTA contemplate that all of the 34-year lease extension option terms be detailed 
in Lease Agreement?  
Answer: Lease extension option terms will be negotiated at a later date and will be 
detailed in the Lease Disposition and Development Agreement and Ground Lease 
Agreement. However, for the RFP submittal the SFMTA requires proposers to submit “any 
proposed terms for the 34 year Ground Lease extension” as part of the Ground Rent Offer.  
 

55. Can the winner of the RFP change its ownership structure / agent of control after 
entering into an Exclusive Development Agreement with the SFMTA? Is there a defined 
process for doing so?  
Answer: Refer to Section 7.1(a) of the draft Exclusive Negotiation Agreement (ENA) which 
addresses the Transfer of Rights under the agreement. 
 

Submittal Requirements and Evaluation Criteria: 
 

56. Would you please clarify what information you are requesting in Section 6.A.v?  
Answer: For Section 4.3, subsection 6.A.v, please provide a narrative explaining the role of 
each developer entity within the financial structure of the proposal. For example, what are 
the equity commitments of each developer entity? How will profits be distributed among 
the developer entities in the project? Which entity will be providing financial guarantees?  
 

57. For the submittal, can the document be formatted as 11x17 pages to facilitate the 
reading of concept drawings and other items?  
Answer: Yes. 
 

58. Are the evaluation criteria for “track record” and “experience” on individual team 
members or just on the firms/entities?  
Answer: The Evaluation Panel will evaluate the qualifications of the firms comprising the 
development team and the key personnel for those firms. Per Section 4.3, subsection 2 of 
the RFP, proposers must provide resumes for key personnel.   
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Miscellaneous: 
 

59. Has a preliminary Phase 1 environmental report been prepared for the garage and/or 
site? If so, will SFMTA make it available to the proposers for review now? If not now, 
when?  
Answer: No, a Phase 1 environmental report has not been prepared for the Site. Per 
Section 5.1 of the RFP, “It shall be the sole responsibility of the selected Proposer to 
investigate and determine conditions of the Site and the suitability of the conditions for 
any proposed improvements. The Site will be conveyed to the selected Proposer in an ‘as 
is’ condition, with no representations or warranties whatsoever.” 
 

60. Is 3% the correct real estate transfer tax (based on the ground lease net present 
value)?  Please clarify the calculation.  
Answer: For more information on the Transfer Tax, please see the following 
link: http://sfassessor.org/recorder-information/recording-document/transfer-tax.  
 
Per the website of the Office of the Assessor-Recorder, “leaseholds with a term of 35 years 
or more are subject to transfer tax.” For more information on the calculation of the 
transfer tax, proposers may contact the Office of the Assessor-Recorder 
(http://sfassessor.org/about-us/office-contact-information). 
 

61. Can you please clarify what is the YBCBD assessment?  
Answer: More information on the YBDCBD and its assessment formula can be found on the 
YBDCBD website: www.ybcbd.org.  

http://sfassessor.org/recorder-information/recording-document/transfer-tax
http://sfassessor.org/about-us/office-contact-information
http://www.ybcbd.org/

